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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
The trustees, who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present
their report with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 20l 8. The trustees
have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective i January 20 l 5).

MISSION, OBJECTIVES ANB ACTIVITIES
AFFORD's mission is to "expand and enhance the contribution that APlcatts in the diaspora make ta
Apicah development". Within the legal framework of Charity law, the main charitable objects of
AFFORD are 'ta reliejpaverty'and 'ta advance education' for the benefit of the public and in particular
Africans and people of African descent. These objects are pursued through a range of beneficial
activities including:

To expand and enhance the contribution

that Afiicans in the diaspora make to Africa's
development through strengthening
the capacity of African development organisations,
promotion and support of African participation in mainstream and specialist areas of
development work, and the facilitation and promotion of effective, creative and novel
approaches to development work.

B.

To organise and arrange training programmes on how to initiate, manage, monitor snd evaluate
practical and beneficial projects in the African countries of origin, United Kingdom (UK) and
other countries; and provide advice and support to African associations who want to organise
relief and development activities for their areas of origin or heritage.

C.

To establish links and working relations between diaspora snd UK based African organisstions
and UK bodies and organisations operating in Afiics; and link up skilled Africans with
organisstions

seeking African expertise.

D.

To carry out research

E.

To organise and provide social and training activities for the Afiican diaspora community and

and surveys; produce, publish and circulate papers, periodicals and other
documents; and sponsor, support and undertake networking, consulting snd other development
and capacity building activities for the benefit of individuals, registered organisations and other
groups based in Africa, the UK and other parts of the global African diaspora.

provide all other social and welfare support to aid A&ican migrants, diaspora and refugees.
in the pmvision of facilities and activities for recreation, sporting and other
leisure activities for young people; and develop initiatives through which youth of African
descent can find positive identiTication with Africa and contribute constructively to their and
Africa's development.

To provide or assist

G.

To undertake all other

lawful activities and projects to further the aims and objectives

of the

charity.

Public benefit
ln setting AFFORD's objectives and planning our activities, the Board
consideration to the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit,
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of Trustees

has given careful

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT

For tbe year ceded 31 March 2010
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE
AFFORD's last Strategic Review on l9 November 20l 7, reorganised its mission through the I'ollowing
overlapping
~
~
~

themes:

strategic programme

Investment, Eater prise tk Employmeat
Engagement, Network Building Services
Research, Policy dk Learning

dk

Training

And an internal area:
~

Corporate AFFORD

Four projects were

~
~
~

run under the investmcnt,

Enterprise tk Employment

theme:

AFFORD Business Centre (ABC) SL
AFFORD Business Club (ABC) UK
Global Entrepreneurship Week (GEW)
AFFORD Diaspora Finance (ADF)

AFFORD

B

siness Centre

C Sierra Leone

Bachground: ABC is a social enterprise hub providing business development support for pre-start-ups
in Sierra Leone (SL). The project also mobilises diaspora and other foreign-based
into SL. ABC was set up under a project which ended on 30 September 2016 having created
506 jobs, provided business development support to 40 SMEs (20 of which launched new products),
and which helped attract 6700,000 inward investment. A project underspend of f38K enabled a year' s
extension of the ABC-SL. This involved continuing suppott for the SMEs, and consolidating ABC-SL
activities through the new Diaspora Finance initiative (DFI) programme. During this reporting period
ABC achieved tbe following outcomes:

to post-start-ups
investment

~

ABC Business Support: Continuing support of 40 ABC businesses and clients, and the creation of
61 additional jobs

~

Integration of ABC: Total integration of ABC activities into the DFl programme.

e

Organisstionsl Development: implementation
complete integration of DFI M & E framework.

~

Oflice Refurbishment:

~

Comic Relief Country Visit: Hosting Comic Relief delegation during Sierra Leone Country Visit.

Refurbishing

of

organisetional

dcvclopmcnt

plan, including

ABC-SL

ABC is fuaded by Comic Relief
Collaboratioa partners include: AFFORD-SL, Sierra Leone High Commission UK

Page 3

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)

AFFORD Basin

Club AB

Background: ABC-UK is a social enterprise hub pmviding business development support for diaspora
and other businesses investing in Africa, particularly those businesses participating in the Diaspora
Enterprise Accelerator Business Planning Competition. It is a key element of the Comic Relief/UKAid
funded Diaspora Finance Initiative (DFI) to increase and diversify investmcnt into Africa. It builds on
ABC-SL's functions of direct and indirect one-to-one and one-to-many Business Development Support
(BDS), coaching and mentoring for entrepreneurs; provision of incubation, business resource and
networking hub; focus on helping businesses develop new and viable products to ensure sustainable
growth through increasing turnover and profits. Twenty diaspora businesses from the Business Planning
Competition will receive one-to-one support to create 200 new jobs by June 2019 in Nigeria, Rwanda,
Sierra Leone and Zimbabwe through investing f750,000 (6600,000 grant plus a matched element of
6150,000 from the businesses). ABC-UK is also linked to BDS partners in the four countries (Enterprise
Development Centre, Pan Atlantic University Nigeria; Private Sector Federation, Rwanda; Empretec,
Zimbabwe; AFFORD-SL) who will deliver on the ground support to the diaspora businesses.

ABC UK's key activities and achievements for the year included:
~

Business Support: Business advice, support and capacity building was provided to 71 paid up
members of ABC, including 40 businesses shortlisted for Stage 2 of the Diaspora Enterprise
Accelerator Competition and the 20 winning businesses from thc competition. Both shortedlisted and winning businesses were supported to improve business plans, budgets and cashflow
forecasts, in-country partnerships, and organisational development. Two business planning
workshops were organised in London and Manchester to provide the necessary information and
guide business participants in developing their business plans. These workshops also provided
the opportunity for organisations to network with each other.

~

Judging

n

Due Diligence: Due diligence was carried out on the grant winning businesses, ensuring
compliance with competition requirements and judges' recommendations. The conditional offer
and intensives due diligence process was a turning point for many of those made conditional
offers, as the mquests made and the support provided, has helped strengthen managcmcnt,
accountabiTity systems and processes, including developing several policies such as diversity,
antiworruption,
and conflict of interest, which has improved the chances of the businesses
receiving similar grants, or other InvestmenL
Additionally, local partner collaborations were
all vetted by AFFORD's country partners in all 4 countries.

~

ABC Launchedi Finalised the full implementation plan with expanded membership benefits
for ABC members. ABC was oflicially launched with a series of events in July 2017. First AD3,
held at the Africa Centre followed by a 'Doing Business in Nigeria, Rwanda, Sierra Leone, and
Zimbabwe' event at Chatham House.

Competition:
12 judges, made up of experienced BDS managers, successful
entrepreneurs, and impact investment managers, were signed up and inducted for thc Business
Planning Competition, ahead of the judging day on 16 May 2017. Thc final 20 businesses were
selected, plus a reserve list of 4.

Page 4

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Reorganisatioa of the Enterprise team: The departure of the Enterprise Manager at the end
of May led to a reorganisation of the department, leaving it with a full-time business advisor,
two part-time BDS consultants and an adminisbator looking afier ABC membership support.

~

laduction Meetings: Webinars were held to talk through the contracts for the businesses which
succcsslully completed thc process and were made final offers at thc end of the business
planning competition. These were followed by face to face induction meetings for grantholders
to ensure ownership of project objectives, intended results, impact indicators, documenting and
reporting procedures. The grantholders
presented their implementation
plans, receiving
feedback from peers, the AFFORD enterprise team and country partners.

~

Training Sessioas: Several ABC training programmes, paid and unpaid, were designed and
delivered, including on Financial Management; Marketing Strategy; Growing your Social
Enterprise, Procurement and Tendering Programme; and International
Programme, which supported trade with Africa.

~

Trade and Development

Business Support: AFFORD set up further systems, including a transnational
business support system, enabling businesses to receive end to end BDS support from the UK
to Nigeria, Rwanda, Sierra Leone and Zimbabwe. The transnational business support involves
monthly reports (summarizing the progress against the milestones set individually for each
business) and client logs from business advisors and country partners to AFFORD
(summarizing all forms of interaction between the grantees and their advisors in the UK and
target countries), followed by a monthly review and planning meeting with both groups on
progress of businesses, and review meetings focused on quarterly reports received from
businesses. The business support system is integrated with the monitoring, evaluation,
accountability & learning (MEAL) system.

Transnatioaal

~ Diaspora Investors Empowered

with Sldlls and Resources to Invest in Africa: AFFORD
made final offers from the Business Competition to 17 businesses: Ades, Ajala, Copdat, ECIM,
Future Africa, Global Native, Utility Review, AWIB, Capworth, FFAP, Passionate, ZIDIG,
Church Pharmacy, Idash Services, Commodity & General, PADEAP and West Africa Tourism.
12 are from Nigeria, 3 from Zimbabwe, I each from Rwanda and Sierra Leone. The businesses
represent diverse sectors including health, food, agri-business, IT, waste management and
recycling, energy, tourism and food Each is able to tap into a programme of training and BDS
in the UK and in country to ensure that they have the sufficient capacity to msximize the success
of their businesses. All 17 businesses have committed a total of f127, 500 as their matchedfund. By end of the reporting period, the businesses had created 74 new jobs:

~

Legal Advice: AFFORD has sought and received pro bono legal advice and support both for
itself and for ABC through A4ID. A series of regular legal clinics are due to be confirmed to
support ABC members with contracts, IP, and other areas that would further strengthen and
develop their business.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)

~ Improved UK —Africa Business Networks and Knowledget ABC, now

with 71 members
(including 17 grantees), has also liaised and worked with other business networks and
organisations. Engagement with other relevant African business clubs such as the Tansanian,
and Nigerian business clubs have also been made; as well as with other training and investment
groups including Africa Business Jumpstart, Pangea Funds (a diaspora investment platform),
Manchester Chamber of Commerce, UEL, and other stakeholders. These are potential strategic
partnerships which should help strengthen ABC members and their networks.

~

Discretionary Awards: Due to unforeseen circumstances in the Zimbabwean economy and the
challenges
some businesses
experienced
with AFFORD's due diligence
complying
requirements, 6 of the shortlisted applicants either withdrew or werc judged not to be eligible
for the grants. AFFORD used its existing discretionary award process, outside of the business
competition framework, to make 3 additional awards. Businesses were identiEed in Nigeria,
Sierra Leone and Rwanda, which are now subject to the due diligence process.

ABC-UK is funded by DFID/Comic Relief Common Ground Initiative
Collaboration Partners Include: AFFORD-SL, Empretec-Zimbabwe;
Enterprise Development
Centre, Pan-Atlantic University, Nigeria; Rwanda Private Sector Federation; Sienu Leone High
Commission; A4ID; Rwanda High Commission; Nigeria High Commission; Zimbabwe Embassy

Global Entre reu ambi

Week GE

Background: AFFORD has participated in the Global Enttepreneurship Week (GEW) for over 10
years, staging different events under the banner. In 2010 AFFORD-SL became the national coordinator
GEW in Sierra Leone. In 2017 AFFORD did not participate in GEW, but is planning for 2018.
~

Global Enterprise Week is funded by AFFORD in partnership

with SOAS

AFFORD Diss ora Finance
Background: AFFORD Diaspora Finance (ADF) brings together a number of instruments

(grants,
loans, equity, matched funds) that provide capital and stimulate and encourage investments by diaspora
businesses/organisations
and AFFORD to Ahica. It now incorporates the former AFFORD Diaspora
Grants programme which started in 2013 as small grants pilot project supporting economic development
and job creation in Africa. It also includes the work cerned aut under RemitPlusvu and RemitAid™to
develop remittance investment instmments such as Diaspora Bands and Remittance Matched Fund
schemes, and the development of a diaspora crowdfunding and philanthropy platform.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

ADF Grants: AFFORD launched AFFORD Diaspora Grants (ADG)

in 2013 as a pilot linked
funded through Comic Relief/UKAid's
Common
Ground Initiative. Rebrandcd as ADF it is an ongoing permanent diaspora grant fund focusing
on job creation with a second round of grants (ADF-2) funded by Noel Buxton Trust and
launched in 2014. Noel Buxton Trust committed a further
10,000 for a third round of ADF
smell grants (ADF-3) in 2015, followed by Pharo Foundation committing 6150,000 for a fourth
round of ADF grants (ADF4), targeted at six Ethiopia focused social enterprises, with the
supported organisations providing a matched element of f6250 each. In 2016 a fifth round
(ADF-5) supported by UKAid/Comic Relieps Common Ground initiative committed a further
6600,000 to support 20 diaspora businesses in Nigeria, Rwanda, Sierra Leone and Zimbabwe,
with each business providing a matched element of 67500. The key ADF achievements and
performance during this period are:

to the Africa-UK Phase

11 programme,

f

s.

ADF Grant (Rounds 3-6)
~

Noel Buxton Trust: Following the end of ADF-3, Noel Buxton Trust committed to a further 3
years funding, working with the same organisations, making a total of 5 years. 303 jobs were
created during the first phase of the small grant fund (including 224 casual jobs). The new 3year grant (ADF-6) aims to improve understanding of the impact effected by small grants of
62000 spread over five years. Organisations developed, received approval for, and began
implementing their 3-year project plans.

~

The Phsro Foundation: supported round, ADF4, ended. All SMEs addressed socio-economic
challenges in target areas and worked with partners to develop innovative solutions with
demonstrable social ImpacL ADFA created 75 jobs plus an additional 125 as selfwmployed /
entrepreneurs. The project also improved skills of employees (around 200 persons were trained
by Sunarma and Setota Care) and improved sustainable livelihoods of employees, their families
and communities. Sunarma impacted thousands of people in neighbouring communities through
the provision of an accessible and affordable flour mill. Other outcomes included better working
condiTions and pay and improved environment for doing business. The SMEs included:

o

o
o
o

o

Addis Fine Art Foundation: a local and international platform for the promotion
and sale of visual arts from Ethiopia, securing livelihoods of visual artists in
Ethiopia.
Alshoni Flour snd Honey Enterprisei supported the Alshoni Women' s
Cooperative to set up a flour-mill, bee-keeping and honey-making
coop,
dramatically improving the lives of rural women.
For Ethiopia Trust: provided training in tailoring to rural girls, helping them
become employment ready
Setota Care: crcatcd a home hcalthcare service, training 100 people in a ncw
industry, and employing 25 trained homecarers, providing affordable home
healthcare treaunent.
Services for Sustainability: provided weaving equipment and training to women
in rural ames/small towns, enabling them to work from home and earn sustainable
incomes. Finished products were imported into the UK, providing access to wider
export markets.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ceded 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Final Evaluation: Of the 6 SMEs, one did not complete the contract. Terms of reference were
draRed for a final evaluation, with the successful Ethiopian consultant conducting the evaluation in
December 2017. Following a visit by the Grants and MEAL Managers to Ethiopia to further review
the impact of projects funded under ADF-4, final project reports were concluded and submitted.
Pharo were impressed by the impact of the project and discussions began about a new funding
round.

~

ADF-5i the round involving the Diaspora Enterprise Accelerator winners and funded by Comic
Relief /DFID), see above under ABC for achievement and performance.

ADF-3 grants programme is I'unded by Noel Buzton Trust, with in-kind sapport from AFFORD;
ADF-4 is funded by Pbaro Foundation, with in-kind support from AFFORD; aad ADF-5 is
supported by DFID/Comic Relief CGI as part of the DFI programme.

b.

Remltptus

uBond

AFFORD's branded Remitplusvu Diaspora Bond is intended to encourage, diversify and enhance UKbased diaspora investments to support small and medium sized development projects in Africa. A pilot
bond will be launched in Rwanda to Enance affordable housing. The Project Model involves an
Integrated Diaspora Public Private Partnership, with the following features:
Social enterprise to provide environmentally
sustainable houses within the affordable housing
spcctflllll
Integrated model, involving production of bricks, construction, and sale of houses
Funding through e 5-year diaspora bond, endorsed by the Government of Rwanda
US$50million programme, pursued through individual projects/trenches of USSSm to USSI 0m
Bond to be denominated in Rwanda Francs, and listed on the Rwanda Stock Market
Projects promoted and delivered as an innovative form of Diaspora Public Private Partnership

(DPPP)
Model to be initiated in Rwanda, and replicated elsewhere in Africa, as a continental programme.
~

c.

The Rwandan Ministry of Finance signed off the first phase of the RemitPlus Rwanda Diaspora Bond
(RRDB-I) and the TOR for the RRDB-I project Steering Committee which will include
repmsentatives of: Ministry of Finance, Kigali Municipal Authority, Rwanda Development Board,
Rwanda Housing Authority, Private Sector Federation and Ministry of Foreign Affairs. The first
meeting of the Steering Committee will take place late 2018. In the meantime, AFFORD is seeking
underwriters for tbe Bond.

Remitaidru Matched Fund Scheme

AFFORD has long researched a UK based Remittance Matched Fund Scheme to finance development
projects and social enterprises which provide sustainable employment and educational opportunities in
Africa. It is likely that the Fund will be structured as a general pooled investment Fund, whereby
individuals (via remittances) and/or institutions will invest in a managed fund structure, as
previously proposed by RemitAidru. Achievements and performance under this work includes:
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 3I March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Remittance

Matched Fund Working Group Mectiag: The first meeting of the Remittance
Matched Fund Working Group was held in February 2018 at EY in Canary Wharf, with AFFORD's
ED acting as Chair of the Working Group. Key stakcholders participated including EY, IOM, and
representatives from MTOs, Managed Funds, and Social Enterprises. There were diifeiences of
opinion about how to structure the Remittance Matched Fund. AFFORD's preferred a blended
finance fund which would include grants, loans and equity investment, supporting the development
of a pipeline investor-ready businesses. The majority preference was for a stand alone, Acumen style
impact investment fund. AFFORD would continue to support the initiative as a member of the
Working Group, but would also continue to develop its ovm blended finance fund, given the
importance of developing a pipeline of investor ready businesses. A second Working Group Meeting
would be held in April or May 2018, with the timeline to set up the matched impact fund in the next
financial year.

d. Diaspora Crowdfunding

Platform

AFFORD's proposals for a crowdfunding platform recognises that it can play a key role in facilitating
direct philanthropy and investment from the diaspora, as well as support the channelling of these
contributions in a more structured way. AFFORD is working with GlobalGiving to provide a platform
for structured philanthropy, enabling diaspora organisation to raise funds for their activities in Africa.
AFFORD Crowdfunding
~

Platform key activities and achievements

for the period include:

Fuadraisiag Initiativci AFFORD organised the 'Fundraising for Diaspora Initiative' event on 15
February 2018 in partnership with Comic Relief and GlobalGiving aiming to showcase potential
sources of funding to diaspora groups and how best to access these resources. 55 attendees were
presented with the opportunity to meet leading UK funders and leam morc about different
approaches to fundraising and how to join the AFFORD&lobaIGiving Diaspora Crowdfunding
Campaign.

e

Fundraising

~

On-line Training: The vetted organisations were offered the opportunity to participate in further
training provided by GlobalGiving on mapping their supporters and networks, and conducting email
and social media outreach in support of their crowdfunding campaign.

~

Diaspora Cruwdfunding

Webinarsi Following webinars and other events organised by AFFORD, 36
organisations
registered to join the AFFORD Diaspora Accelerator on GlobalGiving, 24
organisations submitted their application with the required documents. Only 13 organisations were
approved following GlobalGiving's due diligence, because of a lack of financial repoiting to
showcase their activities in the past 2 years or/and the fact that their organisations wem not limited
by guarantee.

Campaign: On 26 March 2018 the AFFORD Diaspora Accelerator, a 6week campaign was launched with 11 participating organisations. As of 31 March 2018, five days
later, 1,484 was raised by 9 organisations through 36 donors. AFFORD raised f451 through 5
donors.

f
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year eaded 31 Marek 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)

B. ENGAGEMENT, NETWORK
The engagement,

BUILDING SERVICES tk TRAINING

and training programmatic area seeks to mobilise support for
and engaging difFerent stakeholders. It also links this to
developing the capacity of different stakebolders to harness diaspora resources and implement effective
and development
diaspora
The ADEPT, MADE, DEMAC and AFFORD
programmes.
InternshipsNolunteering
programmes fall under this programmatic area,

network

building

AFFORD's work by developing partnerships

ADEPT aims to 'improve and enhance the capacity and impact of the African diaspora organisations
that are involved in development activities in Africa'. This aim is pursued through delivery of services
to diaspom organisations and individuals in Europe and Africa. ADEPT works and engages with 84
countries (28 EU countries, plus Switzerland and Norway, and 54 AMcan countries). ADEPT emerged
out of the pilot Africa-Europe Platform [AEP] project which ran from 2010 to 2013, in line with the
Joint Africa-EU Strategic Partnership [JASP] agreed at the 2007 Lisbon summit. AFFORD was
involved in the delivery of this phase along with 4 other partner organisations: ADPC (Le Hague);
CGMD (Brussels); FORIM (Paris); and IMCPD (Vienna). The ADEPT programme is funded by the
EC, SDC, ICMPD, and GIZ. In the current uunsitlon phase, AFFORD has had sole responsibility for
delivery ol'the ADEPT prgroamme, and has worked to create ADEPT as a permanent servicedelivery
directorate. This phase was intended to concluded in June 2017 but a no-cost extension was granted to
December 2017. Work on the handover to the permanent serviceMelivery direcotrate, has continued
with the following activities:
~

Recruitment and Appointment: The appointment of key staff took place, including, Executive
Director, Finance Manager, Operations Director, Capacity Manager, Admin/Logistical Officer,
Comms Manager and Assistant.

~

DDD7 gr ADEPT AGMi Preparations were made for the DDD7 and ADEPT AGM in Brussels
(7-9 Nov 17), formally launching ADEPT. 35 African Diaspora Development Organisations
(ADDOS) registered to ADEPT for the AGM; 49 participants completed training in OpEx; over 75
ADDOS, civil society groups, and government representatives attended DDD7 in Brussels on thc
topic of strengthening African diaspora participation in African institutions.

~

Diaspora

~

Completion
completed.

Professionals and Business Network: The AU-ADEPT-AFFORD Diaspom
Professionals and Business Network event was organised and held On 11-13Dec 2017: 20 ADDOs,
6 reps from African governments and RECS attended the event.

of Project Outputsi The

outstanding

research and campaign

commitments

were

Monthly Webinarsi ADEPT monthly webinars were organised to enable ADDOs and partners to have
the chance to communicate directly with ADEPT's Director, interact with each other, and get training,
updates on specific funding and other opportunities by guest speakers. Topics for the webinars included:
'How to pave thc way for young diaspora entrepreneurs', 'Diaspora women leaders in international
development; and 'Diaspora skills/knowledge transfer'.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT

For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Handover Support: Support was provided to the ADEPT Team regarding their narrative and
financial reports. AFFORD has supported the new ADEPT team in finalising reports to the donors.
AFFORD organised 3 Communications handover sessions with ADEPT's new communications
team and supported them to finalise and disseminate the February 2018 newsletter

~

Final Narrative snd Financial Rcporb The final narrative and linsncial report were completed
snd submitted for the project. Final Audit Expenditure Verification for the project was also
undertaken by Moore Stephens LLP, with a report produced.

MIGRATION AND CIVIL SOCIETY NETWORK

E

MADE brings together civil society organizations around issues of migration and strengthens their
collective advocacy efforts and cooperation with governments, principally through the Global Forum
for Migration and Development (GFMD). MADE is managed by the International Catholic Migration
Commission (ICMC) and funded by a host of funders, including the EU. In July 20 I 5 AFFORD began
leading and coordinating the global MADE thematic Working Group on Diaspora and Migrants in
Development (DMD WG). Phase I of the MADE project was completed in October 2016. AFFORD
has also been part of a successful bid for a second Phase of MADE, begun in January 2017, with a focus
on developing better policy response to migration issues in a number of West African countries and
continuing the DMD WG focus on job creation, social entrepreneurship, investment and public policy.

MADE achievements and Performasce during 2017/lg include:
~

Phase 2 Inception Meeting: AFFORD's prepared for and participated in the partner inception
meeting with ICMC, FORIM and the Centm for Migration Studies (CMS) in Accra, signifying the
ofEciaI start of the project, and also useful for preparing a side meeting at GFMD 2017 in Berlin.

~

Mapping

and Literature Review: An analysis of diaspora organizations and government
institutions working with migrants and diaspora linked to Ghana end Sierra Leone was researched
and mapped, enabling the highlighting
of good practices on diaspora and development,
organizations and individuals to engage for the success of the project. A literature review was also
undertaken of the existing country context and diaspora engagement within African countries and
The free
in relation to the global migmtion policies of the RABAT and Khartoum Processes.
movement protocol of ECOWAS, ss well as the framework between EU member States and
countries in Africa to pursue concrete projects in the field of migration and development, was also
considered.

~

International Steering Committee QSC)i Through the meetings of the international steering
committee AFFORD contributed to shaping tbe agenda for the December timed GFMD 2017. For
the Civil Society Days snd Common Space, AFFORD co-led, with PICUM, on Theme 3: Safe,
orderly snd regular mechanisms in return and reintegration. The lead role required identifying
moderators, rapporteurs and discussion starters, as well as organizing and defining the focus snd
scope of the session in line with the desired outcomes highlighted in the GFMD CSD concept note,
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES'REPORT
For tbe year ended 31 March 20IS
ACHKVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Participation in GFMD Civil Society Days and Common Space: AFFORD co-led, with P1CUM,
and delivered the session on Theme 3: Safe, orderly and regular mechanisms in return and
reintegration.
The themed sessions were developed around the issues of return with a focus on
human rights and other concerns related to forced and 'voluntary' return; and then on sustainable
and productive return and reintegration in the face of forced or 'voluntary' return (where money is
an incentive) and circular migration. Discussions reiterated that any form of return must be a choice,
not a necessity and for returning to a country of origin, the timing should be an informed choice
not a "choice" under threat of forcible return. Over 100 people participated in the parallel session

with 40 on the first day of civil society day- Recommendations Day - and over 60 on the second
day of Civil Society —Commitments Day. Nearly 150 delegates took part in the session during the
Common Space. Civil Society organizations such as Foundation for Shelter and Support to
Migrants (Malta), Caritas Belgium international
(Belgium), The Detention Forum (UK),
Representative of Sri Lanka to UNOG (Sri Lanka), Mayor of Naga (Philippines), BUSAG (The
Netherlands) and Caritas Gtaly) were involved in various aspects of tbe sessions.
~

Ghana Homecoming Summit: Participated in the Summit between 5 —8 July 2017, followed by
the first stakeholder conference bring together Ghanaian and Sierra Leonean diaspora and home
organisations to engage with policymakers on ways of improving the diaspora policy.

~

Policy Survey: The survey was undertaken to identify key gapa in migration and development
policy areas, as well as diaspora and migrant engagement in development and job creation. The
results will inform the topic and focus areas for planned in-country trainings and stakeholder
engagement. The survey targeted Ghanaian and Siena Leonean diaspora in the UK, Netherlands,
and Nigeria. As well as Ghanaian and Sierra Leonean retumees, pie-identified diaspora,
development organizations, remittance organizations and relevant government authorities from the
target countries. The response and results include: Over 100 responses online through survey
monkey; 105 completed paper copies; and 25 stakeholder interviews.

~

Survey Analysis and Report: Following analysis a drafi report was produced, which is under peer
review. The gsps identified and the recommendations from thc drafi survey report informed the
topics and focus for structuring the content and agenda for the in-country training workshop in Sierra
Leone and Ghana.

~

The In-country Training Workshop: The first in-country stakeholder-trnining workshop was held
1-2 March 2018 at the British Council in Accra, under the theme Enabling and Enhancing Diaspora
Contribution to Development and Job Creation'. 50 people attended, from Government, CSO's,
Diaspora Organizations and international Development Organizations. The training was enhanced
by input fiom Akwasi Awua Ababio (Director of the Diaspora Affairs Office, Office of the President
of Ghana); Kyeretwie Osei (AUKIDO); Key Note speeches provided by Maria Luisa Troncoco,
Head of Governance Section, Delegation of the European Union to Ghana; and Frances Menssh
Williams (Managing Editor, ReConnect Afiica). Onyekachi Wambu, AFFORD Executive Director,
delivered further training on the process of policy formulation and advocacy, specifically on how
diaspora organizations can influence policy with special focus on Ghana.
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~

Reports and Planning: Financial forecasting and progress reports. Revising work plan and project
planning for the second year of the project. Also working with Lead partner to prepare documents
for annual reports and audits for the EU.

MADE is funded by the EC, through the International

Catholic Migration Commission (ICMC).

Partners Include: ICMC, FORIM and the Centre for Migration Studies (CMS), Accra

D

PO

EMERG NCY ACTION gr COORDINATI

N

E

Diaspora Emergency Action and Coordination (DEMAC) is an EU (ECHO) funded project to gain an
understanding of the diiferent ways diaspora communities contribute to humanitarian crises in their
home countries. This partnership project which began in June 2015 comprises the Danish Refugee
Council (DRC) who are focused on the Somali diaspora, Berghof Foundation (Germany) working with
the Syrian diaspora and AFFORD with the Sierra Leonean diaspora. The second phase begun in May
2017, focusing on countries in conflict, and observing in real time how diasporas operate during
humanitarian crises. Nigeria replaced Sierra Leone, given its on-going Boko Harem conflict.

Achievements

and Performance 2017/18

~

Project Plans aad Meetings: Finalising project

~

Outreach
humanitarian

~

to Nigerian
projects in

plans and holding

of project

induction meetings

Diaspora groups: Outreach to Nigerian diaspora groups involved
the conflict hit north east region of the country

in

Research Work: The 4 Nigerian organisations that had been identified to participate in thc research
work being carried out by Samuel Hall faced some challenges: onc was religious focused and could
pose a threat to ow partners on the ground. Other organisations had stopped their humanitarian work
or were operating sporadically given the security situation. Thc Nigeria element shifled to a detailed
mapping of Nigerian diaspora response to humanitarian crisis. The mapping considered the actors
are, where they are located, how they work and their outcomes/ impact on beneficiaries. A draB
report has been received, ahead of finalisation and distribution to interested stakeholders.

~

AFFORD/ DEMAC and MICIC: Initial meeting was held with Migrants in Countries in Crisis
synergies with
initiative (M1CIC) to understand
their follow up work and particularly
activities
are being
AFFORD/DEMAC. Areas of mutual interest were identified, and practical
planned to take place over the next l 2 months, including: MICIC attending the DEMAC tmining to
shee information about their initiative and to get a better idea of diaspora work; and DEMAC
trainees carrying out training to MICIC beneficiaries in country.
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E-lesrnisg Plstformi

~

An e-learning developer was identified and content developers were
contracted to contribute to the information and learning that the platform will provide. Over half of
the provideis were diaspora working in the humanitarian sector so were able to provide content that
will be directly relevant to diaspora experiences, A two-day training programme is being prepared
which test the e-content as well as a Training of Trainers to enable physical training to take place
within diaspora organisations, networks and communities as well was with their local partners.
Work will continue on building the e-platform with content, images and media content. Once the
content has all been confirmed an Arabic translation will also be undertaken. The e-learning
platform will be completed by the end of May 201g, with a June 201g launch date.

~

Face to Face Training: AFFORD were given the role of lead for the training and talks with
Humanitarian Leadership Academy (HLA. ) Following meetings and proposal submission an initial
grant of XI 2,000 was agreed. Subsequent talks and outlining of the vision of the project saw the
scope of work expand from providing a training based on the e-learning we are producing to
including a training af tiainers and an additianal Z7, 000+ was added. The final grant is 6 I 9,850. The
HLA/ DEMAC training later in 201$ will bring together 15 diaspora organisations and 3
humanitarian
organisations to participate in the e-platform testing and training of trainers. The
opportunity will also be used to enable in-depth connections between the diaspora organ isations snd
the formal humanitarian organisations as well as each other.

DEMAC is funded by ECHO, through the Danish Refugee Council (DRC)

Partners Include: DRC, Berghof Foundation,

WHS Secretariat, Save the Children, IOM, World
Vision, UNHCR, OCHA, International Red Cross/Red Crescent, Goal, as well as orgnnisations from the
S ienn Leonean, Somali and Syrian diaspora.

AFFORD Internsbi

s/Voluuteerio

Origins of AFFORD lnternships: AFFORD has been running a structured internship and
volunteering programme since 2003, following publication of a research exercise on 'Shaping
Africa's Future: Do young Africans in the diaspora share the dreams of NEPAD/AU'. In 2003/04
AFFORD started a structured internship partnership with London Metmpolitan University. In
2005/06, AFFORD developed a similar arrangement with EUSA Internships, and have been hosting
students fiom Boston and other US Universities ever since. The internship/volunteering
programme
is designed to give project-based experience to candidates who are interested in African
development as well as migration, diaspora and development issues. The interns and volunteers are
assessed regarding skills, knowledge and experience and are accordingly matched to a project which
best suits both thc needs of the project and intern's career interests. AFFORD continued its
partnership with EUSA who provide American students able to undertake 4- day internships over a
6-week period. During the year AFFORD worked with 6 interns from EUSA. We also worked with
I I other volunteers, and 2 ADEPT fellows.
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Name of Volunteer/Intern
Violets Sacristan
Zodumo Mbuthuma
Abi il Sullivan
Cassandra Boudreaux
Catherine Able-Thomas
Chen

Start Date
14 November 2017
14 November 2017

05 Se tember 2017
28 Febru
2017
30 October 2017
03 Jul 2017
03 Ma 2017
10 Au st 2017
27 Febru
2017
20 Jul 2017
06 June 2017
23 June 2017
20 June 2017
24 Jul 2017
18 Se tember 2017
18 Sc tember 2017
2017
16 Au
22 Feb
2017
22 Ma 2017

in Li

Chistcllc Tsmbi
De'ance Duwhaz
Ellen Crawle
Faith Israel
Gillian Saul
Hu
n Elvarsdottir
Maeve O'L
Mwelwa Mukwsshi
Nsfisa Jones
Nsns Fischer
Nana Ama Omane-Sintim
Roxanne Aminou
Sainabuu Jobe

~

End Date
23 Jan
2018
23 Jan
2018
15 December 2017
13 A ril 2017

30 November 2017
03 AU

t 2017

10 November 2017
13 A ril 2017
30 Se tember 2017
28 Jul 2017
27 Jul 2017
14 Jul 2017
04 Au st 2017
24 December 2017
24 December 2017
14 Se tember 2017
22 Jul 2017
Mid Jul

Interuships and volunteers are funded through spedlic projects and by AFFORD

C. RESEARCH, POLICY
Seven areas

of activity

dk

LEARNING

were undertaken

under the Research, Policy Practice snd Learning programme theme,

namely:
~

~
~
~
~
~

~

4

Monitoring, Evaluation, Accountability
Learning (MEAL)
Global Policy on Iaternstioaal Development
Global Forum on MIgration and Developmeat (GFMD)
All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on Diaspora, Development and Migration
African Diaspora snd Development Dsy (AD3)
Partnerships snd Collaborstions
Funders, Sponsors and Partners
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Eval ation Accountabili

(CO~D)
min

dr

AL

Background: MEAL seeks to more effectively and efftciently captum and deepen understanding of the
impact of AFFORD's interventions and projects, as well as generate action research and the
dissemination of key learning to improve policy and practice. Key activities and outcomes in this period
include:
~

Baseline Assessmeuts: A baseline assessment for businesses was developed, shared with inwountry
partners who provided feedback. A job creation table template was also developed to collect
information

on the quality

ofjobs.

AFFORD Planning and Bodget Document:

~

The MdrE have led work on developing an overall
integrated action plan and budget in response to the 3-year strategic plan, Each department has
focused on the activities and results chain from their different thematic pillars linked to their human
resources needs.

~

Setting up MtkE System

-

Impact Tracher: In order to incentivise staf and partners to document
and share the impact of the DFI project internally and with external audiences and enhance project
accountability, AFFORD set up an Impact Tracker system. We continue to work on the impact
tracker, including stafF workshops to improve usc of thc system. The Impact Tracker will be
augmented by a story teller who documents AFFORD's impact stories.

GLOBAL POLICY ON INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Background: Beyond specific projects AFFORD continued its high-level engagement with the United
Nations, European Union, African Union, and UN Member States. In 2017/I 8 the main focus was on:

~

Harvard Diaspora Fellows Conference, 30 - 31 March 2017, Boston: Gibril Faal, AFFORD
Trustee and Interim Director, ADEPT, spoke on 'Strategies and Tactics for Optimising Diaspora
Contributions to African Higher Education'. The keynote speaker was H.E Jakaya Kikwete, Former
President of Tanzania and Chancellor, University of Dar es Salaam. The session was chaired by Ms
Teboho Moja, Professor of Higher Education, New York University and the other panelists were:
Dr. Facts Aw, American University in Washington DC; Mr Jonah Kokodynisk, Institute of
International Education (USA); Mr Emmanuel Fabiano, Malawian Minister of Education. The
conference was organised by the Carnegie African Diaspora Fellowship Program (CADFP). Other
speakers included: Prof Emmanuel Akyeampong, Harvard University; Vice Provost Mark Elliott,
Harvard University; Prof Paul Tiyambe Zeleza, Vice Chancellor, United States International
University, and Chair, CADFP.

~

LSE Africa Conference, I April 2017, London:

Onyekachi Wambu, AFFORD's Executive
Director, addressed the session on 'Philanthropy's Role in Mitigating Inequality in Africa', speaking
on how remittances sometimes cause inequalities, triggering dysfunctional migration, but if we are
able to pool such remittances through instruments such as diaspora bonds or remittance matched
schemes, we could deliver scaled-up social projects that mitigate some of the downside
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associated with personal remittances. Other speakers included: Rane Zincir Celal (Deputy Director
of the Atlantic Fellows programme, The International Inequalities Institute (Ill); Mwihaki
Muraguri(Formerly
at Rockefeller Foundation); Yvonne Moore(Principal
Advisor Moore
Philanthropy); and Stephan Chambers (Director, The Marshall Institute for Philanthropy and Socia!
Entrepreneurship London School of Economics and Political Science).

3-

~

GFMD Business Mechanism,
4 April 2017, Geneva: As chair of the GFMD Entrepreneurship
and Circular Migration Committee, Gibril Faal moderated and reported on two round-tables at the
meeting on 'Public-Private Dialogue for the UN Global Compact for Migration'. Other speakers
included: Ms Linda Kromjong, Secretary-Gcncral, International Organization for Employers; Mr
Austin Fragomen Jr., Chair, GFMD Business Mechanism; Dr. Gfitz Schmidt-Bremme, German
Ambassador for the 2017-2018 GFMD Co-chairmanship; Mr Ignacio Packer, Secretary-General,
Tarte des Hommes International. The first round-table was on 'The role of the private sector in
encouraging investments, entrepreneurship
and circular migration' and the speakers were: Mr
Roland Dominicd, CEO, Symbiotics; Dr. Ola Orekunrin, Founder dt CEO, Flying Doctors Nigeria;
Ms. Barbara Span, Vice-President Global Public Affairs, Western Union. The second round-table
was on 'Entrepreneurship,
alternative financing options, investments: What constitute effective
circular migration in the 21st centuiy7' and the speakers were: Mr Edin Dacic, CEO, Daccomet AG;
H. E. Mr Coly Seek, Permanent Representative of Senegal to the UN OIIice in Geneva; Mr Andre
Belzile, First Secretary, Permanent Mission of Canada to the UN OIBce in Geneva; and Mr Dilip
Ratha, Lead Economist, World Bank.

~

African Diaspora Biotech Summit, 4 April 2017, Cambridge University: Onyekachi Wambu
delivered the keynote address at the Summit on The Role of the African Diaspora in building a
competitive and sustainable African Bioeconomy', through harnessing diaspom skills, knowledge
and capital to support mentoring, research, African academic institutions, and investment into
speciTic bi~conomy sectors such as clean energy, agri-business.

~

23rd Commemoratlan of the 1994 Genocide Against the Tutsl ln Rwanda, 7 April 2017
London: Onyekachi Wambu aNended a service for the 23rd Commemoration of the 1994 Genocide
Against the Tutsi in Rwanda, at St Maiylebone's Parish Church. The address was delivered by the
Right Honourable Sir Eric Pickles, MP, while the Rwandan
Her
High Commissioner,
Excellency Yamina Karitanyi, spoke about the importance of justice being done by convicting the
guilty in a proper court of law.

~

Co-Faeilitators

for the Global Compact on Migration, 5 April 2017, Geneva: Gibril Faal
participated in private consultative meeting with Amb. Jurg Lauber, co-facilitator of the UN Global
Compact on Migration, on behalf ofGFMD Business Mechanism and Civil Society Action
Committee, at the UN Palais des Nations.
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~

Election of Senegalese Diaspora Deputies, 7 - 8 April 2017, Barcelona: Gibril Faal, ADEPVs
Interim Director, made a keynote opening and closing speeches at the workshop on'Transand Representation of the Diaspora: Election and Role of Diaspora Deputies in the
Senegalese national Assembly'. Other speakers included: Mr Oriol Amoros, Secretary for
Migration, Government of Catalonia; Mr Manel Vila, Director&enersl, Catalonian Agency for
Cooperation and Development; Mr Amadou Bocar Sam, Chairman, Coordinating Association of
Senegalese in Catnlonia (CASC); Ms Awa Chiekh Mbengue, Senegalese Commission on Social,
Economic and Environmental Affairs; Maitre Djibril War, Chairman, Senegalese Parliamentary
Commission on Foreign Affairs and Senegalese Abroad; Prof Aly Tandian, University of Gaston
Berger. The workshop was organised by CASC and ADEPT.

nationality

~

Rellectians on Diaspora Academy, 20 Apr 2017, Thc Hague: Gibril Faal made a keynote
presentation on 'Diaspora as Agents of Change' at a 'Reflection Seminar' at The Hague institute of
Global Justice, organised by theAfrican Diaspora Policy Centre(ADPC). Other speakers
included Dr Awil Mohamoud, Dimctor of ADPC, Prof Paul van Tongeren, Chairman of ADPC,
and Ms Jasmin Nordien, Peace Building Consultant.

~

Recommeadations Ior tbe G7 Summit, 25-26 Apr 2017, Sicily: Gibril Faal made a presentation
on 'From Policy to Practice' at 'Sirscusa II Research Conference on Migration'. Other speakers
included Prof. Erik Berglof, Director of LSE Institute of Global Affairs, Dr Francesco Drago,
G7 Sherpa, Ms Costsnzs
University of Messina, MrFrsncesco Aureli, Italian Government
Hermanin, Special Advisor to the Italian Ministry of Justice, and Prof ibrahim Awed, American
University of Cairo. The conference was organised by London Scbool of Economics, Ortygis
Business School and University of Messina.

~

Supporting Investments to The Gambia, 28-30 Apr 2017, Oslo: Gibril Faal provided predeparture brieflngs snd led development consultations with a group of Norwegian investors,
interested in investing in The Gambia. The meetings were organised by Gambia House (Norway).

~

'In Conversation

~

DEMAC looks forward with Sbabska, 6 Msy 2017, Londoa: Shabaka brought together a panel
of diaspora, including AFFORD, experienced in the humanitarian sector at their event 'Looking
and
forward, taking action'. Shabaka launched a timely report 'Diaspora, Development

..'

5 Msy 2017, SOAS London: Gibril Faal held a conversation
with Chukwu-Emeka Chikezie, co-Founder of AFFORD, on 'ls Vision Enough2'. The event was
organised by AFFORD and the Centre for African Studies, SOAS, as part of the celebrations for the
MBE investiture of Mr Chikezie by HM The Queen.
with.

Humanitarian Response' which highlighted the motivations, challenges as well as opportunities
children of migrants face when it comes to engagement in the humanitarian and development sector.

Page Ig

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHKVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

Sabir Festival of Mediterranean
Culture, 12-13 May 2017, Sicily: Gibril Faal spoke
on 'Implementing Good Migration Policies and Pmctices' as part of the Third International Meeting
of Mediterranean Alternatives, as a representative of the Ortygia Business SchooL

~

African Institute for Remittances 3rd Diaspora Engagement Forum, 15 - 16 May 2017,
Geneva: ADEPT's Capacity Development Manager, Paul Asquith, attended the African Institute
for Remittances 3"Diaspora Engagement Forum, held at tbe Starling Hotel in Geneva, Switzerland
on 15 —16 May 2017. Participants also included a significant number of ADDOs in the ADEPT
network. Speakers included: Mr. Amadou Cisse, lnterim Executive Director, AIR; C. D.
Ugochukwu,
President,
African
Council,
Switzerland;
ADEPT
AC
Diaspora
Member Awa N'diaye, Director of Espace Afiique (Switzerland); Mr. Demeke Atnafu, DirectorGeneral of the Diaspora Afhirs Directorate of the Minisuy of Foreign AIfairs in Ethiopia; Ei man ElKheir, Policy OIFicer at CIDO, African Union; Mr. Leon Isaacs, CEO, Developing Market
Associates (DMA); and Ms. Nike Naghavi, Data Manager at Mobile Money. The event examined
ways in which all stakeholders involved in remittance transfers to Africa, be they Money Transfer
Agencies, policy-makers, or remitters themselves, can work together and exploit new technologies
to reduce transfer costs to AMcan corridors.

~

Third Pan-Africaa Forum on Migration, 15-17 May 2017, Kampalai Gibril Faal spoke
on 'Practice, Not Principles' at the 'High Level Panel on Global Compact on Migration'. The panel
was chaired byAmb. Laura Thompson, Deputy Director of IOM, and the other panellist
were Dr Mohamed Ibn Chambas, Head of UN 06ice for West Africa, Amb. Bishar Abdirahman
Hussein, Director General of Universal Postal Union, Hon. Evelyn Butoyi, Member of Parliament,
Burundi, Mr Aeneas Chums, ILO Regional Director for Africa, and William Muhwava, UNECA,
Chief of Population tk Youth. Thc Forum was opened by the Prime Minister of
Uganda, DrRuhakana Rugandaand
the Minister of Internal Affair, Gen. Jeje Odongo. The
conference was organised by IOM and the African Union.

~

Second Ivorian Diaspora Forum, 22-23 May 2017, Abidjani Gibril Faal spoke on 'How
the Ivorian Diaspora thc 32nd Region of Cote D'Ivoire', at the 'Second Ivorian Diaspora
The Forum was opened by the Prime Minister Mr Amadou Gon Coulibaly. Other speakers
Minister of Ivorians Abmad Mr Ally Coulibaly, Minister of Transport, MrAmadou Kone,
for Youth Employment and Civic Service, Mr Sidi Toure, and representatives of Morocco,
Mali and Niger.

~ Swiss Goverament Consultation, 29 May 2017, Berne: Gibril Faal

to make
Forum'.
included
Minister

Senegal,

met with olficials of the Swiss
Federal Foreign Service for consultative meeting on 'Migration, Development and International
Cooperation'. The meeting was organised by Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation.
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~

EDD Press Seminar, June 2017, Brussels: Gibril Fsal was a panellist for the EU Press Seminar
for European Development Days. The theme was 'Migration: The Development Perspective'. The
other panellists were: Mr Eugenio Ambmsi, Regional Director, IOM; Mr Stefano Signore, Head of
Unit, DG DEVCO; Mr Jean-Christophe Filori, Head of Unit, DG Neighbourhood; Ms Chinenye
Ezeakor, EU Young Leader Scheme. The seminar was organised by the European Commission.

~

8 - 9 June 2017, Berlin: Gibril Faal
'experts' meeting on 'Recommendations
in an academic
participated
for the GCM'.
Other experts included: Mr Dilip Ratha, World Bank; Dr Kathleen Newland, Migration Policy
Institute; Prof. Richard Black, SOAS; Mr Manolo Abedi, Co-Prdsident, KNOMAD Working Group.
The meeting was organised by KNOMADand theGeiman Federal Ministry for Economic
Cooperation and Development (BMZ).

~

33~ ACP-EU Joint Parliameatary

Experts Meeting on Global Compact on Mgratian,

Assembly, 18-21 June, Malta: ADEPT's Fellow Born
attended the 33u ACP-EU Joint Parliamentary Assembly (JPA) from I 8 June to the
21. Bore chsired the ACP YPN Youth Conference in St. Julian, in Malta with Belgian MEP Maria
Arena nnd Djiboutian MP Mohamed GOUMANEH on lg June. Speakers included: H. E. MarieLouise Coleiro Preca -President of Malta; Angelo Farrugia -Speaker of the House of
Representatives of Malta; Mme Ibrahima Memounatou -ACP EU JPA Co-President; M. Louis
Michel -ACP EU JPA Co-President; Ambassador Patrick Gomes -ACP Secretary General;
Cecile Kyenge- MEP Italy; Previously Minister for Integration for Italy; H E. Halifa Sallah —Head
of Delegation Gambia; Maric&hantal Uwitonze —President of ADNE.
Kamwanya

~

World Refugee Day Seminar, 20 June 2017, London: Gibril Faal spoke on 'Enhancing the
Contribution of Diasporas in Development'. The other speakers were: Lord Hamilton (Archie) of
Epsom, House of Lords; Ms Marguerite Horner, International Artist; Mr Simon Israel, TV
Journalist, Channel 4 News; Mr Bcn Margolis, Executive Director of The Grange; Ms Dipti
Pardeshi, Chief of Mission, IOM; Ms Ulrike Schmidt, Amnesty International. The sessions were
moderated by Ms Lul Seyoum and Ms Amina Khalid. The seminar was organised by Initiatives of
Change.

-30

in Sub-Saharan Africa, 28
Juae 2017, Steyningt
at the Wilton Perk ioundtablc, in association with the Foreign and
the Department
for
International
Development and
Trade discussing trade and investment in Sub-Saharan Africa The
to identify and develop channels that facilitate greater trade and
beyond the borders of the leading Sub-Saharan economies.

Boosting trade and investment
Onyckachi Wambu participated
Commonwealth
Office,
the Department for International
purpose of the roundtable was
investment within, between and

~

2017 Global Forum on Migration and Development (GFMD), Civil Society Days 29 June & I
July; Common Space 30 June, Berlin, Germaayt ADEPT and AFFORD participated in a range

af different

meetings and side events. Civil Society day was themed around "Safe, Orderly,
Regular Migration Now: Mechanics of a Compact Worth Agreeing to".
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~

EC Partnership Forum, 6 Jul 2017, Brussels: Gibril Faal made a presentation on 'How to improve
the role and impact of the diaspora in the implementation
of the SDGs', as part of the
20 I 7 'Partnership Forum'. The panel was moderated by Ms Malin Frankenhaeuser, international
Centre for Migration Policy Development. The other panellists were: Mr Pape Birana Thiam,
Director for Technical Cooperation, Senegal; Ms Rohlee de Guzman, European Network of Filipino
Diaspora; Mr Stefano Signore, EC DEVCO; Ms Marie Chantal Uwitonze, African Diaspora
Network in Europe. The Forum was organised by EC Devco. International Dialogue on Migration
(IDM)

~

IDM, 10-19 July 2017, Geneva: Gibril Feel made a presentation on 'How to reduce vulnerability
and empower migrants through the Global Compact on Migration', at the closing panel of the second
IDM of 2017. The panel was moderated by Mr Jean-Christophe Dumont, Head of International
Migration Division, OECD. The other speakers wem Mr George Jashi, Ministry of Justice, Georgia,
and Prof Marius Olivier, Northwest University. The IDM was organised by IOM, held at UN Palais
des Nations, Geneva.

~

SOAS Africa Conference, 20- 21 July 2017, London: AFFORD and ADEPT were co-convenors
of the SOAS Centenary Africa conference, organised by the Centre of African Studies (CAS) at the
School of Oriental African and African Studies, University of London, to mark 100 years of SOAS,
held on 20 and 2l July 2017. This interdisciplinary conference was entitled Imagining Africa's
Future: Language, Culture, Governance,
Developmentand
brought together scholars and
researchers from around the world to discuss the ways in which the African continent in all its
diversity is likely to be transformed over the next 100 years. HRH Muhammad Sanusi II, CON, The
Emir of Keno, Former Governor of the Central Bank of Nigeria gave the keynote lecture on Africa
between thc Past and the Future: Culture, Govcmance and Development'. Paul Asquith chaired a
discussion panel on the topic of 'Actors and Perspectives in the future of African development'.
Panellists included Onyekachi Wambu, who gave a presentation on the subject of 'Africa on the
Move2 Migration and Mobility in 21st Century Africa', before a panel discussion.

~

Plaaet Earth Institute Conference, 20th July 2017, Lnndont Richard Leigh, MADE Project
Manager ran a workshop on "Matched Funding Schemes Stimulating, Increasing and Structuring
Diaspora Remittances" to fund the "Big ideas for Africa" at the ¹ScienceAfrica UnConference on
20 July 2017 under the theme: "Big Ideas for Africa" Other workshop were led by organisations
including Global
Challenges
Research
Fund, INASP, GSMA,
and Amref
Health
Africa. Conference speakers included Rt Hon Lord Paul Boateng; Hon. Min. Blade Nzimande, the
South African Minister for Higher Education and Training; Maya Kulycky, Project Director for
Business Development and Strategy at IBM Research-Africa, Prof Kelly Chibale, Professor and
Principal Investigator at the University of Cape Town, Simon Kay, Head of International Operations
for the Wellcome Trust; Hon. Min. Ibrahim Mohammed Awal, Ghana's Minister for Business
Development; Dr Sipho Moyo, Director of Special Projects for the African Development Bank
(AiDB), Professor Meggy Momba, Research Professor for the Tshwane University of
Technology;Noah
Samara, Chairman of Yazmi, and Dr Joe DeVries, VP of Programme
Development and Innovation for the Alliance for a Green Revolution in Africa (AGRA).
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~

UN Global Compact on Migration (GCM), 24-26 July 2017, New York: Gibril Faal made a
presentation on 'How to expand and enhance the contribution of migrants and diasporas in all
aspects of sustainable development', at the opening panel of the 'Fourth Thematic Session of the
Global Compact on Migration'. The session was opened by the GCM Co-Facilitators Amb. Jurg
Lauber and Amb. Juan Jose Gomez Camacho, and SRSG Ms Louise Arbour. The panel was
moderated by Amb. Hisham Badr, Assistant Minister of Foreign Affairs, Egypt. The other speakers
were Prof Melissa Siegel, Maastricht
Graduate
School of Governance,
and Mr Najim
Azahaf, Bertelsmann Stifiung. On 26 July, Gibril had a meeting with SRSG Louise Arbour, and
participated in the 'First GCM Multi-Stakeholder Hearing', where he pmsented the civil society
recommendations of the 2017 GFMD. The Hearing was opened by Amb. Peter Thomson, President
of thc General Assembly. The meetings were organised by the Offtce of the UN President of the
General Assembly (OPGA) and the Offtce of the Special Representative of the Secretary General
(SRSG), held at thc UN HQ in New York.

~

State of the Allican Continent, 29th August, London: Onyekachi Wambu spoke at the Tony Blair
Institute for Global Change roundtable on the 'State of the African Continent', as part of an internal
event
hosted
the
Effective
Governance
29th
by
pillar on
Tuesday
August.
The panel looked at a range of issues, from technology and its impact on jobs, democracy and
political transitions, and the changing role of China in Africa. The other panelists were: David
Booth (Fellow at the Overseas Development Institute); Serah Makka (Nigerian Director for ONE);
Elizabeth Donnelly(Deputy
Head, Afiica Programme, Chatham House); Richard Dowden,
Executive Director, Royal Africa Society, moderated the panel.

~

Migration Research Leaders Syndicate, 29-30 September 2017: Gihil Faal presented a paper
on'Overprincipled
and underperforming:
why we need a practice-based Global Compact on
Migration'. Other presenters included: Susan Martin of Georgetown University; Marius Olivier of
University of Western Australia; Anna Triandafyllidou of European University Institute; Martin
Ruhs of University of Oxford. The seminar was convened by Marie McAuliffe and Michele Klein-

Solomon

of IOM.

Opening Ceremony ol'the Global Diaspora Week 2017, 9 October 2017, Brussels: The Afiican
Diaspora Network in Europe (ADNE), the African Perspective Magazine (TAP), Global Africa and
ADEPT jointly organised the Opening Ceremony of the Global Diaspora Week 2017 on 9th October
20I 7. The Global Diaspora Week (GDW) is a wack dedicated to diaspora communitics and their
contributions to global development. The GDW creates awareness, enables collaboration and
enhances learning amongst those working with diaspora communities in different locations around
the world. Speakers included: Mr. Luc Tanoh, COO ADS Group (Solektra International and Akon
Lighting Africa), Mr. Stefauo Signora, Head of Unit for Migration and Employment-DEVCO,
European Commission, Mr. Louis Michel, Member of the European Parliament, Co-President of the
ACP-EU Joint Parliamentary Assembly, H. E Amadou Diop, Ambassador of Senegal to Belgium
and the EU (Chairman of the ACP Committee of Ambassadors), Mm. Marie Chantal Uwitonze,
President of the African Diaspora Network in Europe. Gibril Faal, moderated the Innovation &
Entrepreneurship

panel.
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~

AU-CIDO meeting of the Working Group of Diaspora Focal Points and Diaspora Focal Poiats
Workshop, 25-30 November 2017, South Africa: Haja Bally, ADEPT's Communications
Manager took part in the Inaugural meeting of the Working Group of Diaspora Focal Points and the
Diaspora Focal Point Workshop organised by theAfrican Union Citizens and Diaspora
Directorate(CIDO) in Johannesburg, South Africa. This event was an opportunity for the
committee, comprising of 6 Member States (Algeria, Burundi, Egypt, Liberia, Sudan, Zambia) and
2 diaspora organisations (Diaspom Africa Forum and ADEPT) to meet and make recommendations
for forthcoming activities. During the workshop, participants reviewed the recommendations made
in thc I" Diaspora Focal Point workshop in Egypt in December 2016, the legal framework of
diaspora representation and participation at the AU programmes and processes. And discussed and
recommended a diaspora youth engagement suutegy. Participants were Members State countries
and
diaspora
organisations
in
the
committee;
Economic
Regional
Communities: ECOWAS; IGAD; UMA and two youth organisations ADYFE and Wysly.

~

Preparatory
(stocktaking)
Relating
to the
Global
for
Meeting
Compact
Safe, Orderly and Regular Migration, 4-6 December 2017, Puerto Vallarta, Mexico: AFFORD
Trustee, Gibril Faal, has been nominated to serve as one of the overarching experts for UN CGM
during the stocktaking meeting on the Global Compact for Safe, Orderly and Regular Migration that
4-6
took
on
December
Mexico.
place
2017,
in
Puerto
Vallarta,
Other speakers included Ms. Louise Arbour, Secretary-General
of the intergovernmental
Conference to Adopt a Global Compact for Safe, Orderly and Regular Migmtion; Ms. Kathleen
Newland, Senior Fellow of the Migration Policy institute (MPI); H. E. Mr. Jgrg Lauber, Permanent
Reprrnentative of Switzerland to the United Nations in New York; H. E. Mr. Juan Josh Gomez
Camacho, Permanent
Representative
of Mexico to the United Nations in Ncw York;
H.E. Mr. Miroslav Laj61k, President of the 72nd Session of the General Assembly.

~

What Brexit means for African Investors and New Opportunities for Investment, 07
December 2017, London: Stella Opoku-Owusu spoke at an event organised by invest in Africa
on "Whet Brexit means for African Investors and New Opportunities for Investment". The panel
focused on the opportunitics and challenges Brexit represents for investors, the diaspora and African
owned businesses. The event was moderated by: Afua Hirsch, Sky News and the Guardian
Contributor Speakers included: His Excellency Papa Owusu-Ankoma - Ghana High Commissioner,
Tim Morris(Senior Trade Advisor on Africa at the FCO), Mats Persson (EY, Former Special
Advisor to David Cameron); Olusegun Okubanjo (Obsidian, CEO), Bolaji Sofoluwe (ETK Group
Ltd, Director — Business Development dt Strategy) and Peter Collecott(The Ambassador
Partnership, Co-Chairman).
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~

Establishing an African Diaspora Professioaal and Business Network, 11-13December 2017,
Brussels: AU-CIDO, ADEPT, GIZ and AFFORD organised a workshop
on Establishing
a
Diaspora Business Network, held in Brussels on 11-13 December 2017. The African Diaspora
Professionals and Business Network Project is designed to establish an olTicial AU-affilieted
Business and Professional Network composed of leading African diaspora entrepreneurs and
professionals in Europe. IIte workshop brought together diaspora entrepreneurs and investors, as
well as representatives of Afiican governments, Chambers of Commerce, and Regional Economic
Commissions (RECs) to discuss key issues, challenges and opportunities in setting up such a
networks. The aim of this event was to discuss needs and priorities for diaspora entrepreneurs and
investors in establishing such a network, as well as to hear pempectives from RECs in Afiica, and
practical steps for establishing such a network.

~

First Forum on Migratioo, Trade and the Global Economy, 14 December, Buenos Aires,
Argentina: Organised by IOM, and Argentinean stakebolders, including the government, the forum
aimed to include migration on the trade agenda. It was held on the sidelines of the Eleventh
Ministerial Conference (MCI I) of the World Trade Organisation took place from 10 to 13
December 2017. Onyekachi Wambu
promoting trade and investment'.

~

presented

on 'the contribution

of

diaspora

networks

in

Third iaformal interactive multrotakcholder hearing: Pmparatory process for tbe global
compact for safe, orderly and regular migration aad the intergovernmental
conference on
interaational migration, 18 December 2017, UN Headtiuarters, New York: Onyekachi Wambu
presented Panel I: Local perspective on the whole-of-society approach to migration, responding to:
the role of diferent segments of society in shaping migration policies and practice? And how to
ensure coherent migration policies on the local and national levels? 8%at is the role ofcities? Other
speakers included Ms. Louise Arbour, Secretmy-General of the Intergovernmental
Conference to
Adopt a Global Compact for Safe, Orderly and Regular Migration Conference to Adopt a Global
Compact for Safe, Orderly and Regular Migration; H. E. Mr. Juan Josh Gomez Camacho, Permanent
Representative of Mexico to the United Nations in New York; H. E. Mr. Miroslav LajÃk, President

of the

72nd Session

of the

General Assembly.

~

Humanitarian Partnerships Network Week, 5-9, 2018, Geneva: DEMAC was invited to attend
the to participate in the Global Preparedness and Partnerships meeting which brought together
different World Humanitarian Summit (WHS) Initiatives to explore synergies and parmerships.

~

Streagthening Sierra Leone National Health Care Capacity through Diaspora Engagement,
15 February 2018, London. AFFORD was invited to attend the IOM's multilateral meeting with the
Sierra Leone diaspora for the project. This event was hosted by the IOM, UK and IOM, Sierra
Leone, tbe High Commissioner for Sierra Leone, the director for Diaspora Affairs and
representatives who had taken part in the project including DFID and Sierra Leone Diaspora
organisations were in attendance. AFFORD was pleased to see the impact of our work as noted by
the IOM Chief of Mission for Sierra Leone Mr Sanusi Savage. Mr Savage shared a Mapping Report
on UK Health Professionals produced by AFFORD for IOM as being a meaningful and impactful
document.

Page 24

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
~

'Africa is full of 'sh! thole countries'I Star 100 Debate, Friday, 23 February 201St Onyekachi
Wambu, took part in the debate hosted by the Ghanaian diaspora professional network. The event
wss attended by over 100 Ghanaian diaspora pmfessionals and consolidated AFFORD's on-going
support and partnership with Star 100.

~

~

Migration gr Entrepreneurship
Conference, 27 February 2018, Ankara Deputy Executive
Director, Stelle Opoku&wusu participated in themed conference: Role and Impact of Migrant
Entrepreneurs in Countries of Origin and Destination. Organised by the Turkish Govcmment, IOM
and the UK Foreign and Commonwealth Ofilce, AFFORD was invited to share our experience on
diaspora entrepreneurship
and related policies in Africa.
AFFORD spoke on the topic of
'Contribution of Diaspora to Support Migrant Economic Integration'. Other speakers included: Mr.
Tomasso De Cataldo, International
Organization
for Migration, Prognunme Coordinator—
Migration Management; Ms. Jennifer Anderson, Undersecretary of the British Embassy in Turkey;
Mr. Sadcttin Akyil, Director General of International Labour, Ministry of Labor and Social Security
of the Republic of Turkey.

f' SOAS African

Der eiopmenr Forum (ADF) on 2- 3 March 2018, SOAS, London: The ADF wss
established in 2012 by a group of postgraduate students at SOAS, with the edm bring leading thinkers
together to discuss and debate a pertinent theme of interest to the continent. This year's theme was:

'Transitions: Migrating, Imegrating, Innovating, ' drawing from the manifold transitions that have
marked Africa in recent times, from the political transitions in Kenya nnd Zimbabwe, to the mass
exodus of Africans across the Mediterranean and the Sahara. Three moderated panels - Ghosts from
the Past: Migration snd the Slave trade, The New Afiican: Roots snd Resistance, and Agenda 2063:
Now, What Next7 —explored the drivers, determinants, and processes of change on the continence
Onyekachi Wambu participated in the final panel on Agenda 2063: Now, What Next?, raising
awareness of Africa's growing population and the importance ofjobs.

~

- Zimbabwe is Open for Business, 14-16 March 2018, Victoria Falls:
Onyekachi Wambu led a panel focused on partnership with the African Diaspora at the. The keynote
speaker at the conference wss the President of Zimbabwe, Emmerson Dambudzo Mnangagwa and
over 60 of the country's leading CEOs were in attendance. AFFORD beneficiary business Global
Native and in country partner Empretec Zimbabwe also participated in the diaspora panel
discussion.
CEO Roundtsble

2nd Meetiag oi' the AU Member State Diaspora Working Group, 26-28 March 2018, Nairobi:
Organised by the Citizens and Diaspora Directorate (CIDO) of the African Union Commission,
AFFORD continued its participation. The meeting focused on I) Understanding the AU policy
framework and processes; 2) Diaspora Engagement; 3) Communication; 4) Development of s
Diaspora Scorecard. The meeting the working gmup to provide feedback and ideas to CIDO prior
to the wider Diaspora Focal Point Workshop scheduled for the fourth quarter of 2018. In addition
to the workshop an informal meeting was held with Ahmed EI-Basheer, CIDO Director, Anthony
Quiwonkpa from Liberia Diaspora Directorate oifice, AFFORD BoT member Gibril Fsal and
AFFORD Communications Manager, Haja Bally to identify areas for potential collaboration.
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ALL-PARTY

ROUP ON D

SPORA DEVE

PMENT AND MIGRATION

AFFORD acts as the Secretariat For the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Diaspora, Development and
Migration (APPG-DDM). Purpose of the APPG-DDM is to promote parliamentary
and public
understanding of the key issues alfecting diaspora communities in the UK, and to expand and enhance
their contributions to the international development agenda.
Key activities 2017/I 0 include:

~

APPG Meeting: This APPG meeting on the topic of 'How do we manage migration for the benefit
Perspectives from diaspora communities the UK' was rescheduled from 28 Nov 2017 due to
urgent parliamentary business involving Brexit. The APPG meeting raised awmcness of the GCM,

of all?
and

~

of diaspora

contributions

to development more broadly.

With 37 people in attendance, speakers at the meeting included: Ms Brien Usher, Senior Policy
Advisor on the Global Compact on Migration (GCM) at IOM in Geneva; Ms Mona Sadeq,
Deputy Head of Mission to UK and Ireland, international Committee of the Red Cross (lCRC);
Mr Onyekachi Wambu, AFFORD. Points were made from ihe floor by Mabrur Ali of Restless
Beings, a Bangladeshi diaspora org, on the needs of Rohingya relugees in Bangladesh, amongst
other interventions. The Chaplain to the House of Commons, Rose Hudson-Dawkin also
participated. The meeting was chaired by Jeremy Lefroy, MP.

Other Policy work:

~

DEMAC Training materials: developed training materials and exercises for DEMAC policy
advocacy & organizational

~

development

CPDE Aid Effectiveness Steering Group: Participated on Steering Group

meetings

AFFORD and DFI fund tbe APPG work
Partners Include: Office of Jeremy Lefroy, MP; Office of Lord Hastings; Migration APPG; Refugee
APPG
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AFRICA DIASPORA & DEVELOPMENT DAY AD3
AD3 is AFFORD's annual flagship event aimed at awareness-raising, networking, knowledge-sharing
of new themes on diaspora contributions to Afiican development. AFFORD piloted the
project in 2000 and it has been held annually in the first of July since 2002. In recent years in has been
held on the first Friday of July in partnership with Chatham House. This year the day was held over an
extended period with partners tbe African Centre and Chatham House. AD3 17, held on 7 July 20 l 7,
was themed around Business and investment opportunities that young Africans in the diaspora can tap
into, including: Starting or expanding your business to an African country, Establishing a cultural
enterprise right where you are (clothes, restaumnts, books, media etc.); Investing in Africa through
various financial products or becoming an Angel Investor for much less than you think; and Taking
advantage of the rental needs on the continent and investing in property the right way A wide range of
experts shared their success stories, Including Tom Ilube, ; Paschorina Mortty, Djembe
Communications; Solape Epega, Women in Business; Fope Adelowo, Helios Private Equity; Jude Addo,
Standard Chartered Bank; Ernest Hanson, Lifestyle Properties; Hillary Chandodo, Commodity and
General Trading.
and exploration

Supporting SMEs and Cresting Jobs in Nigeria, Rwanda, Sierra Leone, snd Zimbabwe, was held
oa 26 July 201, Chatham Hoose. The event provided more details on the AFFORD Business Club and
the infiustructuie that is in place to support SMEs and the diaspora to invest, share information, and
address mutual challenges. Speakers examined the role SMEs can play in creating jobs, and how
governments in Nigeria, Rwanda, Sierra Leone, and Zimbabwe can support them. Speakers included:
Hon. Captain Momodu Pat-Sowc, Sierra Leone Minister of Trade and Industry; Her Excellency Yamina
Karitanyi, High Commissioner for the Republic of Rwanda; Mr Victor Adeleke, Deputy Head, Industry,
Trade and Investment, Nigeria High Comission; Toyin Soiaru Balogun, Communications Manager,
Nigeria Diaspora Direct Investment Summit; and Hillary Chandodo, CEO, Commodity and General
Trading.

AD3 is funded by AFFORD, with in-hind support from Chatham House and CGI supported
Comic Relief and UK-Atd

by

Partners Includei Chstham House Jk the Africa Centre

A. AFFORD COMMUNICATIONS

WEBSITE
AFFORD upgraded and launched its corporate website. It integrates and replaces all the previous
AFFORD micro-sites (SCOREAfrica; Remitplus; ABC; Africa-Gives, etc). The AFFORD Diaspora
Finance website has also been integrated with it. Immediate feedback was very positive as the site is
accessfiile, bright and easy to navigate. AFFORD continued to work on the newly launched website with
our developer to update and identify plugins to enable a better and more user-friendly website,
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NEWSLETI'ER and AFFORD SOCIAL

D A PRESENCE

During 2017/18, 23 newsletters were sent for both AFFORD and ADEPT, highlighting upcoming
events, crowd funding opportunities and vacancies. 7 diaspora (AFRUCA; FORWARD; Shabaka; AMca
Business Jumpstart; SESA; FAST;Tom-hebe-sa) and 3 nonAIaspora organisations (Bond; IOM; Comic
Reliel) approached and requested AFFORD to share their news and opportunities in our newsletter.
AFFORD used Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Linkedln and Mailchimp to promote and mach out to
wider diaspora audiences.

AFFORD Communications

is funded by a number

of projects, priacipally ADEPT and DFI.

B. CORPORATE AFFORD

I.

FINANCIAL SITUATION

GOVERNANCE, ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE AND OPERATIONS
~

Administration/Logistic:

The ABC-VK resource space was successfully refurbished and

upgraded.

~

Acquisition of CiviHR Software: The process of acquiring an HR Sollware that will Iit tbe needs
of AFFORD started in August 2017. In a bid to secure a reliable and trusted supplier, three providcrs
were assessed. AFFORD opted for CiviHR on the basis of price and usability. AFFORD have been
working with CiviHR to develop and add new features based on staff feedback and other needs. The
system became operational in the first quarter of 2018, following training, with payment for the use
of the softwun beginning in Januaty 2019 once it is bedded in. The new CiviHR is fully compliant
with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) to bc introduced in May 2018. Developers are
constantly updating the system with new features that arc tailored to the activities of AFFORD.

~

GDPRi During the period, a clear road map was set for the implementation of the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) due by May 2018. Activities included both telephone and face to
face meetings with key suppliers. A preliminary assessment of the cunent data processing in the
organisation in order to be compliant. Digital Nerve Centre (DNC), who currently provide our IT
support, were offered the contmct to implement the GDPR roadmap, including preparation of a full
report on our current data processing system and the production of an AFFORD GDPR Policy, as
general training by DNC. Work is expected to be completed by the end of April 2018 by which time
AFFORD will be fully compliant with the new regulation.

~

Board of Trustees: Annual accounts were approved and filed. The Board continued outreach to
recruit HR, legal and accountancy professionals as members. New auditors Wenn Townsend were
hired for the annual audit exercise.
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Fuu ers

S onsorsandPa

ers

In 2017/18, the main grant fundem of AFFORD projects worm
Swiss Agency for Developmeat and Cooperation (Africa-Europe Diaspora Development
Platform)
European Commission DEVCO (Africa-Europe Diaspora Development Platform)
Comic Relief/UKAid (Diaspora Finance initiative/ABC-SL)
Pharo Foundation (AFFORD Diaspora Finance)
European Commission ECHO (Diaspora Emergency Action ih Coordination)
European Commission DEVCO (Migration and Development Civil Society Network)
Noel Buxton Trust (AFFORD Diaspora Finance)

In 2017/IS, the following sponsors provided support (mainly in-kind) to AFFORD:
~
~

Chatbam House provided meeting space through an annual partnership for AD3

GK Partners bore some of the administrative
over 40 days

~

Iaternatlonal
participation

of specialist

and management costs
technical support on a pro bono basis.

Organization
in some

of the

for Migration
international

of AFFORD;

and provided

(IOM) covered travel and logistical costs for

policy events.

~

ReedSmitb Solicitors provided pro bono legal supporL

~

Advocates for International

~

SOAS (University of Loadon) provided meeting space for joint events.

Development (A4ID) provided pro bono legal support

In 2017/IS, tbe following organisations were major project partners of AFFORD:
AFFORD Sierra Leone
Berghof Foundation
Danish Refugee Council
Empretec Zimbabwe
Enterprise Development Centre, Pan Atlantic University (EDC)
International Catholic Migration Commission (ICMC)
international Centre for Migration Policy Development (ICMPD)
Rwanda High Commission
Rwanda Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning
Rwanda Private Sector Federation (PSF)
Sierra Leone High Commission
Sierra Leone Investment and Export Promotion Agency (SLIEPA)
Sierra Leone UK Diaspora Ebola Response Tsskforcc (SLUKDERT)
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The accounts dechued in this report have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Charities (SORP 2015) and with relevant companies and charities legislation
and regulations. The Statement of Financial Activities shows AFFORD's income from all sources and
how this was expended, and the split of activity between restricted and unrestricted funds.

The charity's income was 81,769,464 for the year ended 31 March 2018 compared to 21,272, 953 in the
year ended 31 March 2017. The total expenditure amounted to f1,608,773 for the year ended 31 March
2018 compared to 1,254, 161 in the year to 31 March 2017. Both rises were a result of increased funding
in the year. The fund balance carried forward at 31 March 2018 is f545, 667 compared to 8384, 976 in
the year ended 31 March 2017. Surplus for the year 2017/18 was 160691 compared to 2016/17 surplus
of 18,792. Restricted funds stood at 6558,697 (2017: 6372382).

f

f

Reserves policy
AFFORD is committed to using its resources in pursuit of its charitable objectives. It is also committed
however to maintaining a level of reserves that is prudent to meeting ongoing liabilities, sufficient to
ensure that all delivery commitments can be met and to protect the long-term future of AFFORD's
operations. AFFORD's policy seeks to balance these priorities by holding a level of reserves which
equate to between three and six months expenditure of the charity (f 125k - 8250k); unrestricted fund
balance at the yearwnd was overdrawn
13,030. The Board of Trustees monitors the level of reserves
quarterly and takes appropriate action if reserves fall outside the desired range. The overdrawn was due
to AFFORD's fulfilment of an obligation to provide organisational development support to AFFORD
Sierra Leone. In the coming year AFFORD will engage in various activities such rental of part of the
office space, crowdhnding and consultancy service and training. AFFORD would also raise additional
income through ABC services and also paid volunteering to Africa. The funds that will be raised through
these fundruising activities will reverse the current overdrawn position and help build up reserves in line
with commitment to for 3-6 months of running cost

f

Investment policy and performance
and Articles of Association provides that the organisation invests moneys not
immediately required for its own purposes or upon such investments, securities or property, as may be
thought fit. At the present time, the trustees' policy is to maintain all such monies on deposits earning a
market rale of interest.

The Memorandum

Overdrawn

restricted projects

The trustees note that at 31 March 2018, the following and the balances will be addressed as follows:
I, ADEPT: The short term overdrawn amount was due to timing of the receipt of the income. The
project has been successfully concluded on time and on budget as per contract.
2. Pharo: The short term overdrawn amount was due to timing of the receipt of the income. The
project is concluded on time and on budget as per contract.
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AFFORD Business Centre (ABC): With the completion on 30 September 2016 of the ABC project in
Sierra Leone funded by Comic Relief, AFFORD is further consolidating the ABC concept in the UK
and Sierra Leone through the Comic Relief /DFID funded DFI programme. ABC programme
components of awareness raising activities to promote enterprise as a viable and productive career path
for young people; one-to-many and one-to-one enterprise and business development training; direct and
indirect one-to-one and one-to-many business advice, coaching and mentoring for entrepreneurs;
relational business support provision with enhanced connection between advisers and entrepreneurs;
provision of incubation, business resource and networking hub; focus on helping businesses develop
new and viable products and services and attain sustainable growth through increasing turnover and
profits; promotion of ethical business practices and decent and sustainable jobs. Consolidate the
partnerships in Nigeria (Enterprise Development Centre) Rwanda (Private Sector Federation), and
Zimbabwe (Empretec Zimbabwe) into a viable pan-African network of end to end business support for
SMEs. AFFORD hopes to grow the network in 10 or more countries, either through new centres or in
partnerships with existing business support centres.

AFFORD Dhrspora Finance (ADF)i The AFFORD Diaspora Finance (ADF) programme will be
further developed. The awarding of 6600, 000 of grants to diaspora businesses operating in Nigeria,
Rwanda, Sierra Leone, and Zimbabwe, funded by the Comic/DFID funded DFI programme will be
completed with the 3 discretionary awards; and a further E30,000 of grants over 3 years to organisations
operating in Nigeria, Kenya, Uganda, and Ethiopia funded by Noel Buxton Trust ADF will undertake
its first equity investment in Shop Afrique —an online platform for Diaspom and African SMEs to sell
their goods. ADF will continue to seek different fenders and partners to grow its initial fund of 6760,000
(which has now been committed), exploring options for loans and equity financing.

RemitPlus™AFFORD

will seek to launch the first tranche

(RRDB-I), a $10 million ticket to fund affordable housing

of its

Rempitplus

Rwanda Diaspora Bond

in Rwanda. It will also work with RemitFund

fund to support diaspora business initiatives. Building on its pilot
crowdfunding scheme with Global Giving AFFORD will launch its own Remitplusvu crowding fhnding
Implementation of these schemes shall
platform to leverage diaspora philanthropy and volunteering.
continue to be done within the context of the global development policy frameworks of the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), Financing for Development (FFD) and Innovative Finance.

to launch an impact investment

Remitgkifle~: AFFORD will seek to advance its concept note on a Remhgkiflsvu

programme which
links modern vocational training to diaspora technical input, modem apprenticeships, new enterprise
development in Africa, new job opportunities in Europe, and temporary and circular migration.
AFFORD will continue to seek funding for this programme.

Diaspora Engagement and Network Services: With the completion of the ADEPT programme, and
almost completion of DEMAC Phase 2, AFFORD will seek to advance this area of its expertise in
supporting the development of diaspora professional
areas, through engagement and capacity building.

networks
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TRUSTEES' REPORT
For tbe year ended 31 March 2010
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution and Organisational Structure: The charity is a company limited by guarantee and was
incorporated 21 May 2003. lt was registered as a charity on 1 July 2004. AFFORD was established in
1994 and, prior to incorporation, was an unincorporated charity registered on 9 October 1996. The old
charity number was 1058570. AFFORD was established by Memorandum and Articles of Association
which describes the objects and powers of the charitable company; it is governed under its Articles of
Association. Under those Articles, the trustees are appointed at the Annual Geneml Meeting. The
members of the company are also the directors/uustees of the charitable company. The organisational
structure of AFFORD consists of a Board of Trustees which delegates the day to day management of
the charity to Executive and Programme Directors. The Board is assisted by Advisory Committees
which are chaired by the trustees. The key committees are the Finance and Human Resource Committee
(FHRC) and the Project Development and Fundraising Committee (PDFC). The operations, projects and
programmcs of the charity are carried aut by the Executive and Programme Directors, Project Managers
and other staff. Consultants are also hired to undertake work for the charity. Consultants repott to Project
Managers or Programme Directors. The staff rcport directly to the Executive Director, who in turn is
line managed by the Chair.
The Board of Trustees govern AFFORD and meet quarterly to
discuss and review strategy, planning, development and financial matters. Day-to-day management of
the organisation is de!egated to the staff. Every three years, a strategic review is undertaken, involving
trustees, staff, funders, partners, beneficiarics and other stakcholders. Thc mview leads to the production
of a new strategic plan. The latest suutegic review took place on 19 November 2016,with key
recommendations
that Diaspora Finance, Enterprise and Employment would constitute 60-70% of
AFFORD's work; also to ensure enough reserves to cover 6 months operating costs; plus establish an
AFFORD Business Centre.

Governance aad Decision-Maldng:

and Appointment of New Trustees: The trustees are recruited according to their
knowledge, skill and experience of the themes and activities undertaken by thc charity; cominitment to
AFFORD mission, objectives and activities; and in accordance with the requirements for the governance
of charities. AFFORD provides information and updates about operations to thc trustees. Board and
relevant committee meetings consider and discuss matters relating to the strategic dhection and focus
of the charity.

Recruitment

Induction and Traiaing of new Trustees: New
responsibilities as charity trustees; the management
management issues, e.g. policy, personnel, finance,
on how to have optimum input and influence in the

trustees receive induction training on: their legal
and operational structure of the charity; and thc key
projects and funding matters, They are also guided
current and future development of the charity.

Risk Managcmcnt: The trustees have a duty to identify and review the risks to which the charity is
exposed and to ensure appropriate controls are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud
and error.

Page 32

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
The trustees (who are also directors of African Foundation for Development (AFFORD) for the
purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financitd
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
Company Iaw requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of afihirs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable for that year. In
preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:
~
~

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

~

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable UK Accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

~

~

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
presume that the charitable company will continue in business

to

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at anytime of the linancial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

So far as each of the trustees is aware at the time the report is approved:
~ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and
~ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice-Accounting
and Reporting by Charities and in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to smail companies.

APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board

Ade Daramy

of Trustees

on

!6

.

—Chair

jk test+ 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Olayink
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AFFORD
For tbc year ceded 31 March 2018
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of African Foundation for Development for the year ended
31st March 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
~

~

give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31st March 2018, and of the charity's
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year
then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Genemlly Accepted Accounting

Practice; and
~

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
Charities Act 2011.

of the Companies Act 2006

snd the

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sulftcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to goiog concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:
~ the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
~

statements is not appropriate; or
the trustees have not disclosed in thc financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
msy cast significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in thc trustees' annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to tbe
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwisc appears to be materially

In connection
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misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other inforination. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by tbe Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
~

~

the information given in the trustees' report (incorporating the directors' report) for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with thc financial statements; and
the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light

of our knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

in the course

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 and the Charities Act 201 I requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
~
adequate and suRicient accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or
returns adequate for ow audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
~

~
~

~

the parent charitable company's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small
companies' regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemptions in preparing the
directors' report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the trustees (who
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) ate responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate charitable
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic al(emative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the linancial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free &om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
basis of these financial statements.

of users

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www. frc. org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
forms part of our auditor's report.

taken on thc

is located on the
This description

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and to the charitable company's trustees, as a body, in
accordance with Part 4 of the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members and its trustees those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body and the charitable company's trustees as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Graham Cole BA FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Wenn Townsend
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

~.

30 St Giles
Oxford

OX1 3LE

1

(t- .J3.

+6 2018
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 March 20 IB

Unrestricted
funds

f

Notes

Voluntary income
Donations and legacies
investment

Restricted
Funds

Tolnl

Total
2017

2018

f.

1,961

1,961

597

income

income from charitable activities
Relieving poverty and advancement

of education

3

Total Income

32, 144

1,735,359

1,767,503

1872,329

34, 105

1,735,359

1,769,464

1372,953

59,729

1,549,044

1,608,773

1

59,729

1,549,044

1,608,773

1,254, 161

(25,624)

186,315

160,691

18,792

12,594

372,382

384,976

366, 184

(13,030)

558,697

545,667

384,976

~itgnnlt, tre on:
Charitable activities
Relieving poverty end advancement

of education

4

Total Expenditure
Net incomej(expenditure)

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

All recognised gains end losses are included in the Statement

of Financial Activities.

All thc charity's activities are classified as continuing.

The notes on pages 40 to 47 form part

of these

financial statements.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
BALANCE SHEET
31 March 2018

As at

2018

2017

Notes

Fixed Assets
Tangible Gxed assets

Curreat Assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

9

Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

10

89,064
738,554

239, 157
191,256

827,618

430,413

(257,451)

(45,437)

Net Current Amets

570, 167

384,976

Total Assets less current liabilities

570, 167

384,976

Creditors: amounts Ming due after
more than onc year

(24,500)

Net Assets

545,667

384,976

558,697
(13,030)

372,382
12,594

545,667

384,976

Funds:
Restricted funds
Unrestricted funds

18
19

TOTAL FUNDS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of part 15 of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to small companies.

Tbe Qnancial statements were appmved by the board sn authorised for issue on(9:()gcEaxb%018 and
signed on
its behalfby:

Ade Daramy-Chair

The notes on pages 40 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Company registration number. 04772972
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018

f

160,691

Net income for the reporting period
AdJusroron/s

2017

8
18,792

for:

Depreciation
(Increase)/decreese in debtors
Increase in cteditors
interest from investments

150,093

2,099
(200,494)

236814

2~70
(597)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

547398

(157,630)

Cash liow from investing activities:
Interest from investments

597

Net cash provided by investing activities

597

547298

(157,033)

Cash and cash equlvaleots at the beginning of the
period

191,256

348,289

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

738,554

191,256

Changes in cash aod cash equivalents
reporting period

Analysis

in the

of cash and cash equivalents

Balance at
31 March 2018

Balance at

31 biarch 2017

8
738,554

Cash in hand
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For thc year coded 31 March 2018
1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIKS

I.I. Basis of accounting
The financial stat~ments of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared in accordance with thc Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting end Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective I January
2015)', Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standwd epplicabte in the UK and
Republic of Ireland', the Charities Act 2011 and tbe Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The trustees consider there are no material uncertainties about the Charity's ability to continue as a going
concern. The financial statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.

1,2. Fund accounting
General funds are unrestricted funds which we available for use at the discretion of the trustees in I'urtherance
of the general objectives of the company and which have not been designated for other purposes.
Designated funds comprise of unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for pwticutw
pmposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by donors
which have been raised by the charity for particular purposes. Thc aim and uses of the restricted funds are
set out in the notes to the financial statements.

19.

Income
Afi income is included in the Statement of Financial Activities when thc charity is legally entitled to thc
income, there is probability of receipt and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy, except as

follows:
When donors specify that income given to the chwity must be used in Iuture accounting periods, then
the incom» is deferred to the specified period.
When donom impose conditions which have to be fulfilled before thc charity becomes entitled to use
such income, the income is delcrred until the preconditions for use are met.
When donors specify that income is for a particular restricted purpose which does not amount to
preconditions regarding entitlement, the income is recognised as income when receivable.

No amounts are included in the financial statements for services donated by volunteers.

1.4. Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised on an accruals basis as a liability is incurred. Expenditure includes any VAT which
cannot be fully recovered, and is reported as part of the expenditure to which it relates. Support costs which
cannot be directly attributed to particular projects are apportioned In proportion to the direct staff cost
allocated to the projecL Governance costs, which form part of Support costs include expenditure on tbe
governance of the charity and its assets and are primarily associated with constitutional and statutory
requirements.
Charitable expenditure consists of all expenditure relating to the objects
attributable to the activities under which they have been analysed.
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AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fnr the year ended 31 March 2018

I.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.5. Depreciation

and Tangible Ihed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost l«ss accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write oif the cost less residual value of each asset over its expected usei'ul life, which in all cases
is estimated at 2 years.

1.6. Operating

leases
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially
with the lessor or am charged to the SOFA as incurred.

all

of the

benefits and risks

of ownership

remain

1.7. VAT
The charity Is registered for VAT and irrecoverable VAT is «hinged es an expense against the activity for
which expenditure arose.

l, g, Debtors

and creditors receivable/payable within one year
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rare and receivable or payable within one year are recorded at
transaction price, Any losses arising I'rom impairment are recognised in expenditure.

2

DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

Uarestricted

Restricted

funds

funds

1,961

Donations endgilts

2018

1,961

2017

27

3 INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted

Restricted

funds

funds

-

DFI Comic Relief
DEMAC

6,022
14,310

Adept- European Union
Small Grants

ABC —Comic Relief
Other income
ADG - Pharo Foundation
MADE
ADG Noel Buxton
ABC —membership fees

10,062

1,000
750

32, 144
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2018

2017

1,264,430
107,603
190,117
140

1,264,430
113,625
204, 427
140

743@75
6, 180
470,549

4,681
55,764
102,624
10,000

14,743
55,764
102,624
11,000
750

4, 851

34,415

1,767,503

1372,329

1,735,359

1,311
8,098

3,650

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

4.

EXPENDITURE ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted
funds

Restricted

2018

2017

f

f

funds

f
Charitable activities:
Relieving poverty and advancement

of

education

Staif salaries (note 7)
Direct project costs
Donations given
Grants made
Support costs (note 5)

45,092

216

428, 596
572,974
8,000
465, 185

428, 596
618,066

8/16

352,501
763,492
36,666

101,502

14,421

74389

465, 185
88,710

59,729

1,549,044

1,608,773

1,254, 161

2018

2017

f

Net expenditure is stated aller charging:
Auditors' remuneration:
Audit
Previous Auditors' remuneration:
Non-audit services

5

f

6,980

6,000
3,410

SUPPORT COSTS
2018

f

Premises

10,580

Statf costs

32,7 10
50

Office costs
Other costs
Governance costs

6,980

11,749
47,710
3,037
32,993
6,013

88,710

101,502

38390
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

6. TRUSTEES
During the year, no Trustees received remuneration for acting as Trustees. In the previous year one Trustee received
remuneration totalling 826,215 for his employment as detailed in not» 17. Trustee reimbursement of expenses totalled

69, 133 (2017:68,029).
The total amount of employee remuneration received by key management personnel is 653 045. (2017: f60~3). The
charity considers its key management personnel comprise of the executive director end other project leaders.

7.

STAFF COSTS

2018

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

2017

409,415
42, 517
11,303

314,760

463~5

378,592

60,385
3,447

The average monthly employee headcount during the year was 12 (2017: 9) and the average monthly number
full-time equivalent stslf during the year was es follows:

of

2018

2017

Number

Number

Charitable
Support

12
14o employee received remuneration

amounting

to more than 860,000 in either year.

The pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme. No contributions were outstanding for payment as at 31st March

2018 (2017: Alii).
included in charitable costs above is the payment of project consultants during the year for various project related work
undertaken for the charity. An amount of 6149,682. (2017: 1213,556) was paid to consultants in the year under review.

8.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Fixtures 4k
Equipment

Total

Cost
At 31 March 2018 and at

2017

12,536

12,536

At I April 2017
Charge for thc year

12,536

12,536

At 31 March 2018

12,536

12436

I

April

Depreciatian

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2017

The charity's fixed assets are currently at minimal or residual Value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For tbe year ended 31 Marcb 2018

9.

DEBTORS

2018

2017

Travd deposit
VAT debtor

15,000

222, 994
15,000
1, 163

Other debtors

74,064

f

Accrued income

89,064

10.

CREDITORS: amounts falling due

11.

2017

75,552

9,306
26,422
6,220
3,489

Grant commitments

12.

13,346

9,095
159,458

CREDITORS: amounts falling due
after more than oae year

239, 157

2018

within one year

Trade creditors
Other tex and social security
Accruals
Other creditors
Grant commitments (see note 12)

f

f

257,451

45,437

2018

2017

f.

f

24, 500

(see note 12)

GRANT COMMITMENTS

Payable in
year

Commitments at
1st April 2017

f

Commitments
entered into
during the year

f

2017/18
2018/19
2019/20

281,042

Grants paid
in the year

(281,042)

159,458
24, 500

465,000

Page 44

at
31st March 2018

Commitments

159,458
24, 500

(281,042)

183,958

AFRICAN FOUNDATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (AFFORD)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

13.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted

Total

funds

Funds

8
Fund balances at 31 March 2018 as represented by:
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non current liabilities

14.

87,749
(97,993)

742, 655
(159,458)
(24,500)

827,618
(257,451)
(24,500)

13,030

558,697

545,667

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
The charity's commitment under non~cellabie operating leases:

2018

2017

Rent:

36,083
6,014

Less than one year
Between one and five years

I*

36,083
42, 097

TAXATION
The charity is not liable to tsx on its charitable grants, donations or fec income earned in the course of its
charitable activities, so long as the income is applied for the purposes of its charitable aims.

Id. SHARE CAPITAL
AFFORD is a company limited by guarantee snd has no share capitaL Each member is liable to contribute a
sum not exceeding 61 in the event of the charity being wound up.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
From July 2014, GK Partners Limited was contracted to lead the delivery of the Ahica-Europe Diaspora
Development Platform (ADEPT). Mr Gibril Faal who is a trustee of AFFORD is also a shareholder in GK
Parmers. The Board of Trustees approved this contract as being in the best interest of the charity and
in accordance with thc Memorandum and Aniclcs of Association of thc charity. The ADEPT project is funded
by the Swiss Agency for Development and Cooperation (SDC) and the European Union (EU). GK Partners
had other contracts with SDC unrelated to ADEPT or AFFORD. Funding of the entire ADEPT pmject was
on the understanding that it would be led by Gibril Faal (through GK Partners Limited). The payments made
are for direct project work and compensation for non-trustee duties. The total amount paid to GK Partners
Limited in the current fmancial year wss 826,215 (2017: 636,439). To comply with EU procurement rules,
during the prior year G ibril Faal was employed for six months (October 2016 to March 2017) during which
time he did not participate in decisions of thc Board of Trustees, he loll employment 31" March 2017 snd
received no remuneration in the year ended 31"March 2018.
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18.

ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Restricted Funds:
At
I April

2017

f

DFI
ADEPT-EC
DEMAC
ADG
MADE

At

Income

f

Expenditure

f

469,438

i 365, 121

(1,138, 160)

(71,786)
(13,088)
(5,281)
(6,901)

194,247
107,603
65,764
102,624

(219,554)
(56,434)
(65,422)
(69,474)

372,382

1,735,359

(1,549,044)

31 March
2018

f

596,399
(97,093)
38,081
(4,939)
26,249
558,697

ADEPT -EC —Funding received from EU to carry out migration studies in the diaspora.
DEMAC —These represent funds received to gain understanding of thc ways diaspora communities
contribute to humanitarian crises in their home/heritage countries.
—Funding received for innovative job creation and sustainable social
PHARO-FOUNDATION
enterprises in Ethiopia.

MADE —Funds received to showcase the projects and contnlmtions of diaspma and migrants, especially
in the fields ofjob creation, enterprise and investment, and countering xenophobia.
DFI —Through funding from UKAID/Comic Relief s 'lhe Common Ground Initiative (CGI), the DFI
Progmmme has the objectives of increasing and diversifying diaspora investment in Africa
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19. ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT

IN FUNDS

Funds:

Unrestricted

At

At

I April
2017
Gencmt funds

Income

31 March
2018

Expenditure

f

125594

34, 105

(59,729)

(13,030)

12,594

34, 105

(59,729)

(13,030)

20. COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (2017)
Unrestricted
Funds

Total
2017

Restricted
funds

Notes

Income an

endowmen

f

mr

27
597

27
597

Donations and legacies
Investments
Income from charitable activities
Relieving poverty and
advancement of education

50, 152

1,222, 177

Total Income

50,776

1@22,177

1,272, 953

142, 120

1, 112,041

1,254, 161

142, 120

1, 112,041

1,254, 161

(91,344)

110,136

18,792

103,938

262, 246

366, 184

12,594

372,382

384,976

I

s72,329

~$$$$
Charitable activities
Relieving poverty and
advancement of education

Total Expenditure
Net income

I (expenditure)

Total foods brought forward

Total funds carried forward
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